SONIC CORP
Form 10-Q
January 08, 2014
<u>Table of Contents</u>
· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
Washington, D.C. 2034)

FORM 10 O
FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)
[X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended November 30, 2013
OR
[] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 0-18859
SONIC CORP.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 73-1371046 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
300 Johnny Bench Drive 73104 Oklahoma City, Oklahoma (Zip Code) (Address of principal executive offices)
(405) 225-5000
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Table of Contents

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer (Do no check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes No

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.

As of January 2, 2014, approximately 56,483,768 shares of the registrant's common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, were outstanding.

Table of Contents

SONIC CORP.

Index

	Page
PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION	Number
Item 1.Financial Statements	
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at November 30, 2013 and August 31, 2013	4
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended November 30, 2013 and 2012	5
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended November 30, 2013 and 2012	6
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	7
Item 2.Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	11
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	17
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	17
PART II. OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1. <u>Legal Proceedings</u>	18
Item 1 Risk Factors	18
Item 2. <u>Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds</u>	18
Item 6.Exhibits	19

Table of Contents

PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

SONIC CORP. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (In thousands, except per share amounts) (Unaudited)

	November	
	30,	August 31,
	2013	2013
ASSETS		
Current assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$95,893	\$ 77,896
Restricted cash	6,894	11,823
Accounts and notes receivable, net	26,238	29,142
Income taxes receivable	232	7,728
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	11,460	14,133
Total current assets	140,717	140,722
Noncurrent restricted cash	6,749	6,791
Notes receivable, net	9,334	10,013
Property, equipment and capital leases	733,968	729,197
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization	(337,202)	(329,536)
Property, equipment and capital leases, net	396,766	399,661
Goodwill	77,093	77,093
Other assets, net	25,922	26,514
Total assets	\$656,581	\$ 660,794
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY		
Current liabilities:		
Accounts payable	\$10,121	\$ 13,100
Franchisee deposits	3,342	4,048
Accrued liabilities	29,987	37,221
Income taxes payable	5,048	4,241
Current maturities of long-term debt and capital leases	14,199	14,320
Total current liabilities	62,697	72,930
Obligations under capital leases due after one year	21,473	22,458
Long-term debt due after one year	434,932	437,380
Deferred income taxes	34,106	34,915
Other non-current liabilities	18,050	15,647
Total non-current liabilities	508,561	510,400
	/	,

Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock, par value \$.01; 1,000 shares authorized; none outstanding	-	-
Common stock, par value \$.01; 245,000 shares authorized;		
118,309 shares issued (118,309 shares issued at August 31, 2013)	1,183	1,183
Paid-in capital	224,016	224,768
Retained earnings	766,346	758,138
Treasury stock, at cost; 61,889 shares (62,025 shares at August 31, 2013)	(906,222)	(906,625)
Total stockholders' equity	85,323	77,464
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$656,581	\$ 660,794

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

SONIC CORP. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (In thousands, except per share amounts) (Unaudited)

	Three months ended November 30,		
	2013	2012	
Revenues:			
Company Drive-In sales	\$ 93,499	\$ 93,456	
Franchise Drive-Ins:	21 221	20.020	
Franchise royalties and fees	31,221	29,920	
Lease revenue	886	1,486	
Other	1,046	1,146	
Total revenues	126,652	126,008	
Costs and expenses:			
Company Drive-Ins:			
Food and packaging	26,236	26,632	
Payroll and other employee benefits	33,340	33,465	
Other operating expenses, exclusive of			
depreciation and amortization included below	21,807	21,976	
Total cost of Company Drive-In sales	81,383	82,073	
Selling, general and administrative	17,005	16,130	
Depreciation and amortization	10,034	10,595	
Other operating (income) expense, net	(129)	7	
Total costs and expenses	108,293	108,805	
Income from operations	18,359	17,203	
Interest expense	6,383	7,675	
Interest income	(117)	(141)	
Net interest expense	6,266	7,534	
Income before income taxes	12,093	9,669	
Provision for income taxes	3,885	3,536	
Net income	\$ 8,208	\$ 6,133	
Basic income per share	\$ 0.15	\$ 0.11	
Diluted income per share	\$ 0.14	\$ 0.11	
r			

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Three months ended

Table of Contents

SONIC CORP. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (In thousands) (Unaudited)

	November 30,	
	2013 2012	
Cash flaves from aparating activities	2013	2012
Cash flows from operating activities: Net income	\$ 8,208	\$ 6,133
	\$ 8,208	\$ 0,133
Adjustments to reconcile net income		
to net cash provided by operating activities:	10.024	10.505
Depreciation and amortization	10,034	10,595
Stock-based compensation expense	828	1,043
Other	(1,383)	169
Decrease in operating assets:		
Restricted cash	4,912	2,091
Accounts receivable and other assets	3,799	3,857
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:		
Accounts payable	(3,088)	695
Accrued and other liabilities	(4,947)	(4,424)
Income taxes	9,700	(5,397)
Total adjustments	19,855	8,629
Net cash provided by operating activities	28,063	14,762
Cash flows from investing activities:		
Purchases of property and equipment	(7,618)	(5,892)
Proceeds from sale of assets	616	2,115
Other	1,271	513
Net cash used in investing activities	(5,731)	(3,264)
<i>g</i>	(-))	(-, -,
Cash flows from financing activities:		
Payments on debt	(2,446)	(3,759)
Purchases of treasury stock	(7,155)	(16,882)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options	5,961	327
Other	(695)	(1,101)
Net cash used in financing activities	(4,335)	(21,415)
word in immining wearings	(.,555)	(==,:==)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	17,997	(9,917)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	77,896	52,647
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$ 95,893	\$ 42,730
Cubit and cubit equivalents at one of portou	Ψ 75,075	$\psi = 12,730$

Supplemental cash flow information Non-cash financing activities:

Change in obligation to acquire treasury stock \$ 355 \$ 1,194

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents
SONIC CORP.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANICAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, expect per share data)
(Unaudited)
1.Basis of Presentation
The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") and with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and notes required by GAAP for complete financial statements of Sonic Corp. (the "Company"). In the opinion of management, these financial statements reflect all adjustments of a normal recurring nature, including recurring accruals, necessary for the fair presentation of the Company's financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim periods presented in conformity with GAAP. In certain situations, recurring accruals, including franchise royalties, are based on more limited information at interim reporting dates than at the Company's fiscal year end due to the abbreviated reporting period. Actual results may differ from these estimates. These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2013, included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K. Interim results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for a full year or any other interim period.
Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly owned subsidiaries and a number of Company Drive-Ins in which a subsidiary has a controlling ownership interest. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
Reclassifications
Certain amounts reported in previous years, which are not material, have been combined and reclassified to conform to the current-year presentation.
2.Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

	Three months ended November 30, 2013 2012		
Numerator:			
Net income	\$	8,208	\$ 6,133
Denominator:			
Weighted average common shares outstanding-basic		56,292	57,672
Effect of dilutive employee stock options and			
unvested restricted stock units		1,605	413
Weighted average common shares – diluted		57,897	58,085
Net income per common share – basic	\$	0.15	\$ 0.11
Net income per common share – diluted	\$	0.14	\$ 0.11
Anti-dilutive securities excluded(1)		967	4,567

⁽¹⁾ Anti-dilutive securities consist of stock options and unvested restricted stock units that were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because either the exercise price of the options was greater than the average market price of the common stock or the total assumed proceeds under the treasury stock method resulted in negative incremental shares and thus the inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.

Edgar Filing: SONIC CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

SONIC CORP.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANICAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands, expect per share data)

(Unaudited)

3.Share Repurchase Program

In August 2013, the Company's Board of Directors extended the share repurchase program authorizing the Company to purchase up to \$40 million of its outstanding shares of common stock through August 31, 2014. During the first three months of fiscal year 2014, approximately 0.4 million shares were acquired pursuant to this program for a total cost of \$7.5 million. The total remaining amount authorized, as of November 30, 2013, was \$32.5 million. Share repurchases may be made from time to time in the open market or in negotiated transactions, depending on share price, market conditions and other factors. The share repurchase program may be extended, modified, suspended or discontinued at any time.

4.Income Taxes

The following table presents the Company's provision for income taxes and effective income tax rate for the periods below:

Three months ended November 30, 2013 2012

Provision for income taxes \$ 3,885 \$ 3,536

Effective income tax rate 32.1 % 36.6 %

The decline in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 tax rate was primarily attributable to a \$0.5 million tax benefit resulting from the IRS' acceptance of a federal tax method change.

As of November 30, 2013, the Company had \$2.1 million of unrecognized tax benefits, including \$0.3 million of interest and penalties. During the first three months of fiscal year 2014, the liability for unrecognized tax benefits decreased \$0.5 million. The decrease was primarily related to the IRS' acceptance of a federal tax method change. This change impacted the Company's tax rate. The Company recognizes estimated interest and penalties as a component of its income tax expense, net of federal benefit. If recognized, the entire amount of unrecognized tax benefits would favorably impact the effective tax rate.

The Company or one of its subsidiaries is subject to U.S. federal income tax and income tax in multiple U.S. state jurisdictions. The Company is currently undergoing examinations or appeals by various state and federal authorities. The Company anticipates that the finalization of these examinations or appeals, combined with the expiration of applicable statutes of limitations and the additional accrual of interest related to unrecognized benefits on various return positions taken in years still open for examination, could result in a change to the liability for unrecognized tax benefits during the next 12 months ranging from a decrease of \$1.5 million to an increase of \$1.3 million depending on the timing and terms of the examination resolutions.

5. Contingencies

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings and has certain unresolved claims pending. Based on the information currently available, management believes that all claims currently pending are either covered by insurance or would not have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, operating results or financial condition.

The Company has obligations under various operating lease agreements with third-party lessors related to the real estate for certain Company Drive-In operations that were sold to franchisees. Under these agreements, which expire through 2029, the Company remains secondarily liable for the lease payments for which it was responsible as the original lessee. As of November 30, 2013, the amount remaining under these guaranteed lease obligations totaled \$10.5 million. At this time, the Company does not anticipate any material defaults under the foregoing leases; therefore, no liability has been provided.

<u>Table of Contents</u>
SONIC CORP.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANICAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, expect per share data)
(Unaudited)
6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The fair value of financial instruments is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. The Company has no financial liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
The Company categorizes its assets and liabilities recorded at fair value based upon the following fair value hierarch established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board:
•Level 1 valuations use quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date. An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
•Level 2 valuations use inputs other than actively quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include: (a) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, (b) quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active (c) inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability such as interest rates and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals and (d) inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.
•Level 3 valuations use unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs are used to the extent observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date.
The Company's cash equivalents are carried at cost which approximates fair value and totaled \$53.2 million at November 30, 2013 and \$39.1 million at August 31, 2013. This fair value is estimated using Level 1, inputs

:

At November 30, 2013, the fair value of the Company's Series 2011-1 Senior Secured Fixed Rate Notes, Class A-2 (the "2011 Fixed Rate Notes") and Series 2013-1 Senior Secured Fixed Rate Notes, Class A-2 (the "2013 Fixed Rate Notes") approximated the carrying value of \$445.1 million, including accrued interest. At August 31, 2013, the fair value of the 2011 Fixed Rate Notes and 2013 Fixed Rate Notes approximated the carrying value of \$447.6 million, including accrued interest. The fair value of the 2011 Fixed Rate Notes and the 2013 Fixed Rate Notes is estimated using Level 2 inputs from market information available for public debt transactions for companies with ratings that are similar to the Company's ratings and from information gathered from brokers who trade in the Company's notes.

Table of Contents

SONIC CORP.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANICAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands, expect per share data)

(Unaudited)

7. Segment Information

Operating segments are generally defined as components of an enterprise for which separate discrete financial information is available as the basis for management to allocate resources and assess performance.

Based on internal reporting and management structure, the Company has two reportable segments: Company Drive-Ins and Franchise Operations. The Company Drive-Ins segment consists of the drive-in operations in which the Company owns a controlling ownership interest and derives its revenues from operating drive-in restaurants. The Franchise Operations segment consists of franchising activities and derives its revenues from royalties, initial franchise fees and lease revenues received from franchisees. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Company's most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K. Segment information for total assets and capital expenditures is not presented as such information is not used in measuring segment performance or allocating resources between segments.

The following table presents the revenues and income from operations for each reportable segment, along with reconciliation to reported revenue, income from operations and income before income taxes:

	Three months ended		
	November 30,		
	2013	2012	
Revenues:			
Company Drive-Ins	\$ 93,499	\$ 93,456	
Franchise Operations	32,107	31,406	
Unallocated revenues	1,046	1,146	
Total revenues	\$ 126,652	\$ 126,008	
Income from operations:			
Company Drive-Ins	\$ 12,116	\$ 11,383	
Franchise Operations	32,107	31,406	
Unallocated income	1,175	1,139	

Unallocated expenses:

Selling, general and administrative	(17,005)	(16,130)
Depreciation and amortization	(10,034)	(10,595)
Income from operations	18,359	17,203
Net interest expense	(6,266)	(7,534)
Income before income taxes	\$ 12,093	\$ 9,669

Table of Contents

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

In the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, unless the context otherwise requires, the terms "Sonic Corp.," "the Company," "we," "us," and "our" refer to Sonic Corp. and its subsidiaries.

Overview

System-wide same-store sales increased 2.2% during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 as compared to an increase of 3.0%, for the same period last year. Same-store sales at Company Drive-Ins increased 1.9% during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 as compared to an increase of 4.2% for the same period last year. We believe the successful implementation of initiatives, including product quality improvements, a greater emphasis on personalized service and a tiered pricing strategy, have set a solid foundation for growth which is reflected in our operating results. We continue to focus on key initiatives such as increased media effectiveness and our innovative product pipeline in supporting our layered day-part promotional strategy to drive same-store sales. To achieve earnings growth we utilize a multi-layered growth strategy which incorporates same-store sales growth, operating leverage, deployment of cash, an ascending royalty rate and new drive-in development. Positive same-store sales is the most important layer and drives operating leverage and increased operating cash flows.

Revenues increased to \$126.7 million for the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 from \$126.0 million for the same period last year. Franchising revenues were the primary driver of the growth in revenues, which reflects the increase in same-store sales and new drive-in development partially offset by the decline in lease revenues. Lease revenues declined due to a franchisee's purchase during the second quarter of fiscal year 2013 of land and buildings previously leased or subleased from the Company. Restaurant margins at Company Drive-Ins improved 80 basis points during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 primarily as a result of leverage from same-store sales increases.

First quarter results for fiscal year 2014 reflected net income of \$8.2 million or \$0.14 per diluted share, as compared to net income of \$6.1 million or \$0.11 per diluted share for the same period last year. Excluding the \$0.5 million or \$0.01 per diluted share tax benefit resulting from the IRS' acceptance of a federal tax method change during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, net income and diluted earnings per share for the first three months of fiscal year 2014 increased 26% and 18%, respectively.

The following non-GAAP adjustments are intended to supplement the presentation of the Company's financial results in accordance with GAAP. We believe the exclusion of these items in evaluating the change in net income and diluted earnings per share for the periods below provides useful information to investors and management regarding the underlying business trends and the performance of our ongoing operations and is helpful for period-to-period and

company-to-company comparisons, which management believes will assist investors in analyzing the financial results for the Company and predicting future performance.

	Three mo	onths	Three months ended November 30,		
	Novembe	er 30,			
	2013 201			2012	
	Net	Diluted	Net	Diluted	
	Income	EPS	Income	EPS	
Reported – GAAP	\$ 8,208	\$ 0.14	\$ 6,133	\$ 0.11	
Tax benefit from the IRS' acceptance of a federal tax method change	(484)	(0.01)	-	-	
Adjusted - Non-GAAP	\$ 7,724	\$ 0.13	\$ 6,133	\$ 0.11	

Table of Contents

The following table provides information regarding the number of Company Drive-Ins and Franchise Drive-Ins operating as of the end of the periods indicated as well as the system-wide change in sales and average unit volume. System-wide information includes both Company Drive-In and Franchise Drive-In information, which we believe is useful in analyzing the growth of the brand as well as the Company's revenues, since franchisees pay royalties based on a percentage of sales.

System-wide Performance (\$ in thousands)

	Three months ended November 30,					
	20)13		2	012	
Increase in total sales		2.4	%		2.7	%
System-wide drive-ins in operation(1):						
Total at beginning of period		3,522			3,556	
Opened		7			1	
Closed (net of re-openings)		(12)			(8)	
Total at end of period		3,517			3,549	
Average sales per drive-in	\$	266		\$	258	
Change in same-store sales(2)		2.2	%		3.0	%

⁽¹⁾ Drive-ins that are temporarily closed for various reasons (repairs, remodeling, relocations, etc.) are not considered closed unless the Company determines that they are unlikely to reopen within a reasonable time.

Results of Operations

Revenues. The following table sets forth the components of revenue for the reported periods and the relative change between the comparable periods.

⁽²⁾ Represents percentage change for drive-ins open for a minimum of 15 months.

Revenues (\$ in thousands)

	Three months ended November 30,			crease	Percent Increase	
	2013	2012	(D	ecrease)	(Decrease)	
Revenues:						
Company Drive-In sales	\$ 93,499	\$ 93,456	\$	43	0.0	%
Franchise Drive-Ins:						
Franchise royalties	30,912	29,914		998	3.3	
Franchise fees	309	6		303	5,050.0	
Lease revenue	886	1,486		(600)	(40.4)	
Other	1,046	1,146		(100)	(8.7)	
Total revenues	\$ 126,652	\$ 126,008	\$	644	0.5	%

Table of Contents

The following table reflects the changes in sales and same-store sales at Company Drive-Ins. It also presents information about average unit volumes and the number of Company Drive-Ins, which is useful in analyzing the growth of Company Drive-In sales.

Company Drive-In Sales (\$ in thousands)

	Three months ended November 30, 2013 2012				
Company Drive-In sales	\$ 93,499		\$ 93,456		
Percentage decrease	•	%	(3.4)	%	
Company Drive-Ins in operation(1):					
Total at beginning of period	396		409		
Opened	-		-		
Sold to franchisees	(7)		-		
Closed (net of re-openings)	(1)		-		
Total at end of period	388		409		
Average sales per Company Drive-In	\$ 239		\$ 230		
Change in same-store sales(2)	1.9	%	4.2	%	

⁽¹⁾ Drive-ins that are temporarily closed for various reasons (repairs, remodeling, relocations, etc.) are not considered closed unless the Company determines that they are unlikely to reopen within a reasonable time.

Same-store sales for Company Drive-Ins increased 1.9% for the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, as compared to an increase of 4.2% for the same period last year. Company Drive-In sales were flat during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, as compared to the same period last year, mainly due to a \$2.0 million increase in same-store sales and \$0.5 million of incremental sales from new drive-in openings offset by a \$2.5 million decrease in sales related to drive-ins that were closed or refranchised during the preceding twelve months.

⁽²⁾ Represents percentage change for drive-ins open for a minimum of 15 months.

Table of Contents

The following table reflects the change in franchise sales, the number of Franchise Drive-Ins, average unit volumes and franchising revenues. While we do not record Franchise Drive-In sales as revenues, we believe this information is important in understanding our financial performance since these sales are the basis on which we calculate and record franchise royalties. This information is also indicative of the financial health of our franchisees.

Franchise Information (\$ in thousands)

	Three months ended November 30,					
		013	50,	2	012	
Franchise Drive-In sales	\$	829,995		\$	808,660)
Percentage increase		2.6	%		3.4	%
Franchise Drive-Ins in operation(1):						
Total at beginning of period		3,126			3,147	
Opened		7			1	
Acquired from the Company		7			-	
Closed (net of re-openings)		(11)			(8)	
Total at end of period		3,129			3,140	
Average sales per Franchise Drive-In	\$	270		\$	262	
Change in same-store sales(2)		2.3	%		2.9	%
Franchising revenues(3) Percentage increase	\$	32,107 2.2	%	\$	31,406 3.4	%
Effective royalty rate(4)		3.72	%		3.70	%

⁽¹⁾ Drive-ins that are temporarily closed for various reasons (repairs, remodeling, relocations, etc.) are not considered closed unless the Company determines that they are unlikely to reopen within a reasonable time.

⁽²⁾ Represents percentage change for drive-ins open for a minimum of 15 months.

⁽³⁾ Consists of revenues derived from franchising activities, including royalties, franchise fees and lease revenues. See Revenue Recognition Related to Franchise Fees and Royalties in the Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates section of Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended August 31, 2013.

⁽⁴⁾ Represents franchise royalties as a percentage of Franchise Drive-In sales.

Same-store sales for Franchise Drive-Ins increased 2.3% for the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, as compared to an increase of 2.9% for the same period last year. Franchising revenues increased \$0.7 million, or 2.2%, for the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, compared to the first quarter of fiscal year 2013. The increase in franchise revenues was primarily attributable to an increase in royalties related to the growth of same-store sales and an increase in franchise fees from the opening of seven new Franchise Drive-Ins during the quarter. Partially offsetting these increases was a decline in lease revenue due to a franchisee's purchase during the second quarter of fiscal year 2013 of land and buildings previously leased or subleased from the Company.

Table of Contents

Operating Expenses. The following table presents the overall costs of drive-in operations as a percentage of Company Drive-In sales. Other operating expenses include direct operating costs such as marketing, telephone and utilities, repair and maintenance, rent, property tax and other controllable expenses.

Company Drive-In Margins

	Three m ended	onths			
	Novemb	er 30,	Percentage Points		
	2013	2012	Decrease		
Costs and expenses:					
Company Drive-Ins:					
Food and packaging	28.1 %	28.5 %	(0.4)		
Payroll and other employee benefits	35.6	35.8	(0.2)		
Other operating expenses	23.3	23.5	(0.2)		
Cost of Company Drive-In sales	87.0 %	87.8 %	(0.8)		

Drive-in level margins improved by 80 basis points during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 as a result of leverage from improved same-store sales. Food and packaging costs were favorable by 40 basis points, which resulted from menu price increases that outpaced commodity cost inflation. Payroll and other employee benefits, combined with other operating expenses, improved 40 basis points mainly as a result of leveraging improved sales.

Selling, General and Administrative ("SG&A"). SG&A expenses increased \$0.9 million, or 5.4%, to \$17.0 million for the first quarter of fiscal year 2014. This increase is primarily related to salary and benefits as a result of additional headcount in support of the company's technology initiatives and higher variable compensation due to improved operating performance.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization decreased \$0.6 million, or 5.3%, to \$10.0 million in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, as compared to the same period last year. This decline is primarily the result of a franchisee's purchase during the second quarter of fiscal year 2013 of land and buildings previously leased or subleased from the Company.

Net Interest Expense. Net interest expense decreased \$1.3 million, or 16.8%, in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, as compared to the same period last year. This decrease was due to a decline in our weighted-average interest rate

attributable to our partial debt refinancing completed in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013 and a decline in our long-term debt balance. For additional information on long-term debt see our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended August 31, 2013.

Income Taxes. The provision for income taxes reflects an effective tax rate of 32.1% for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 as compared to 36.6% for the same period in 2013. The decline in the first quarter tax rate was primarily attributable to a \$0.5 million tax benefit resulting from the IRS' acceptance of a federal tax method change. Our fiscal year 2014 tax rate may vary depending upon the reinstatement of employment tax credit programs that expired on December 31, 2013, and pending resolution of certain tax matters. Further, our tax rate may continue to vary from quarter to quarter depending on the timing of stock option dispositions by option-holders and as circumstances on other tax matters change.

Financial Position

Total assets decreased \$4.2 million, or 0.6%, to \$656.6 million during the first three months of fiscal year 2014 from \$660.8 million at the end of fiscal year 2013. The decrease in total assets is largely attributable to the decline in net property, equipment and capital leases of \$2.9 million from depreciation during the first three months of the year, partially offset by capital additions. Additionally, we saw a decline of \$2.9 million in accounts and notes receivable, net, mainly related to the seasonality of our business. These decreases are partially offset by increases in cash primarily attributable to cash generated from operations during the quarter.

Total liabilities decreased \$12.1 million, or 2.1%, to \$571.3 million during the first three months of fiscal

Table of Contents

year 2014 from \$583.3 million at the end of fiscal year 2013. This decrease was primarily attributable to a \$7.2 million decrease in accrued liabilities which mainly related to the payment of bonuses and other liabilities that were accrued as of August 31, 2013 and \$2.4 million of scheduled debt principal payments during the first three months of fiscal year 2014.

Total stockholders' equity increased \$7.9 million, or 10.1%, to \$85.3 million during the first three months of fiscal year 2014 from \$77.5 million at the end of fiscal year 2013. This increase was primarily attributable to current-year earnings of \$8.2 million.

Liquidity and Sources of Capital

Operating Cash Flows. Net cash provided by operating activities increased \$13.3 million to \$28.1 million for the first three months of fiscal year 2014, as compared to \$14.8 million for the same period in fiscal year 2013. This increase primarily resulted from the receipt of a federal income tax refund of \$7.5 million and lower income tax payments for the first three months of fiscal year 2014, as compared to the same period last year, mainly attributable to the timing of estimated payments. The increase was partially offset by a net decrease of \$1.5 million from changes in operating assets and liabilities primarily related to timing of payments.

Investing Cash Flows. Cash used in investing activities during the first three months of fiscal year 2014 increased \$2.5 million to \$5.7 million compared to \$3.3 million for the same period in fiscal year 2013. The table below outlines our use of cash for investments in property and equipment for the first three months of fiscal year 2014 in millions.

Replacement equipment and technology for existing drive-ins	\$ 5.0
Brand technology investments	1.0
Rebuilds, relocations and remodels of existing drive-ins	0.8
Newly constructed drive-ins	0.8
Total purchases of property and equipment	\$ 7.6

These purchases increased \$1.7 million compared to the same period last year primarily related to our increased investments in technology. Additionally, proceeds from the sale of surplus property declined \$1.5 million due to less activity versus the prior year.

Financing Cash Flows. Net cash used in financing activities decreased \$17.1 million to \$4.3 million for the first three months of fiscal year 2014 from \$21.4 million for the same period in fiscal year 2013. This decrease primarily relates to a \$9.7 million reduction in purchases of treasury stock and a \$5.6 million increase in proceeds from stock option exercises. Additionally, our mandatory debt payments declined as a result of our fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013 partial debt refinance.

In August 2013, our Board of Directors extended the share repurchase program authorizing us to purchase up to \$40 million of our outstanding shares of common stock through August 31, 2014. During the first three months of fiscal year 2014, approximately 0.4 million shares were acquired pursuant to this program for a total cost of \$7.5 million. The total remaining amount authorized, as of November 30, 2013, was \$32.5 million. Share repurchases may be made from time to time in the open market or in negotiated transactions, depending on share price, market conditions and other factors. The share repurchase program may be extended, modified, suspended or discontinued at any time.

As of November 30, 2013, our total cash balance of \$109.5 million (\$95.9 million of unrestricted and \$13.6 million of restricted cash balances) reflected the impact of the cash generated from operating activities, stock option exercise proceeds, cash used for share repurchases, debt payments and capital expenditures mentioned above. We believe that existing cash, funds generated from operations and the \$100 million available under our Series 2011-1 Senior Secured Variable Funding Notes, Class A-1, will meet our needs for the foreseeable future.

Table of Contents

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Critical accounting policies are those the Company believes are most important to portraying its financial conditions and results of operations and also require the greatest amount of subjective or complex judgments by management. Judgments and uncertainties regarding the application of these policies may result in materially different amounts being reported under various conditions or using different assumptions. There have been no material changes to the critical accounting policies previously disclosed in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2013.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

There has been no material change in the quantitative and qualitative market risks set forth in Part II, Item 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended August 31, 2013.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-14 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.

There were no significant changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended November 30, 2013, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal controls over financial reporting.

_	п 1	1	c	\sim	
	∣ar	บค	ΩŤ	('01	ntents

1	DΔ	PT	II _	$-\Omega T$	HER	INFO)RM	ΙΔΤ	ION	ſ
	$r_{\mathcal{H}}$		11 -	- (, ,	$\Pi \Gamma \Lambda$	IIVE		1 A I	11 7 7	

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings and has certain unresolved claims pending. Based on the information currently available, management believes that all claims currently pending are either covered by insurance or would not have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, operating results or financial condition.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There has been no material change in the risk factors set forth in Part I, Item 1A, "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended August 31, 2013.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

(c) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Shares repurchased during the first quarter of fiscal 2014 are as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

		Total Number	
		of Shares	Maximum Dollar
			Value that
		Purchased as	May
Total	Average	Part of Publicly	Yet Be
Number of	Price	Announced	Purchased
Shares	Paid per	Plans or	Under the
Purchased	Share	Programs	Program(1)

Period

September 1, 2013 through September 30, 2013	122	\$ 17.76	122	\$ 37,833
October 1, 2013 through October 31, 2013	156	18.34	156	34,970
November 1, 2013 through November 30, 2013	127	19.54	127	\$ 32,490
Total	405	\$ 18.54	405	

⁽¹⁾ In August 2013, the Company's Board of Directors extended the share repurchase program authorizing the Company to purchase up to \$40 million of its outstanding shares of common stock through August 31, 2014. Share repurchases may be made from time to time in the open market or in negotiated transactions, depending on share price, market conditions and other factors. The share repurchase program may be extended, modified, suspended or discontinued at any time.

Table of Contents

Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibits.

31.01	Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to SEC Rule 13a-14
31.02	Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to SEC Rule 13a-14
32.01	Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
32.02	Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
101.INS	XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.LAB	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

SONIC CORP.

By: /s/ Stephen C. Vaughan Stephen C. Vaughan, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: January 8, 2014

Table of Contents

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number and Description

31.01	Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to SEC Rule 13a-14
32.01	Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
31.02	Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to SEC Rule 13a-14
32.01	Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
32.02	Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
101.INS	XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.LAB	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document